


 

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 @ 6:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Comments are limited to 3 minutes. The purpose of the public comment period is for the public to inform the 
Council about their views. The City Manager may direct staff to follow up with you regarding your comment or 
questions. Written comments are always welcome and can be emailed to the City Recorder at 
alanter@cityofbanks.org. 

 
Speaking In Person: Please fill out a green comment card on the table at the front of the room and give it to the 
City Recorder prior to the start of the meeting. If you have a written statement for the Council, please have 10 
copies available, and give them to the City Recorder who will distribute them to the Council. 
 
Speaking Virtually: Please contact the City Recorder before 1 pm, the day before the meeting. Email the City 
Recorder at alanter@cityofbanks.org or call 503-324-5112 to provide your name, phone number, address, email 
address, and topic. Members of the public will not be able to share their screen or turn on their camera during 
the meeting; presentation materials should be submitted as written testimony and be received by the City 
Recorder before 1 pm the day before the meeting. The City Recorder will send you a confirmation email.    
 
CEREMONIAL PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS 

4. 2025 National Fix-a-Leak Week Proclamation Agenda Packet pg. 106 

 
CITY REPORTS, BRIEFINGS AND PROGRAMS 

5. Police Monthly Briefing – Washington County Sheriff’s Office  
6. Library Director Report – Denise Holmes, Library Director Agenda Packet pg. 107 
7. Public Works Report – Conner Hayes, Public Works Supervisor Agenda Packet pg. 109 
8. City Recorder/Assistant City Manager Report – Angie Lanter, City Recorder/Assistant City Manager 

Agenda Packet pg. 110   
9. City Manager Report – Jolynn Becker, City Manager Agenda Packet pg.  111 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: The items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and all will be adopted by one 
motion unless a Council Member requests, before the vote on the motion, to have any item considered 
separately. If any item is removed from the Consent Agenda, the Mayor will indicate when it will be discussed on 
the Business Agenda. 

10. City Council Meeting Minutes – January 14, 2025. Agenda Packet pg.  113 
11. Shall the City Council adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook, the City of Banks Public 

Works Department On-Call Policy, and the City of Banks Vacation Sell Back Policy, and the newly 
created City of Banks PERS Retiree Workback Policy, Banks Municipal Court Media Protection Policy, 
City of Banks Paid Leave Oregon Policy, and the City of Banks Employee Accrued Leave Request Form? 
(CL2025-04) Agenda Packet pg. 119 

12. Shall the City Council approve the annual operating hours extension request from Sunset Speedway and 
Sunset Park Association? (CL 2025-05) Agenda Packet pg. 121 

13. Shall the City Council confirm appointments to the Board, Commission and Committee positions listed 
below, based on recommendations from the mayor? (CL2025-06) Agenda Packet pg. 125 

a. Barbara Brennan – Budget Committee Position BC1, term will expire on December 31, 2026. 
b. Barbara Brennan – Urban Renewal Agency Budget Committee position URABC8, term will expire 

on December 31, 2026. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
Comments are limited to 3 minutes. 
 
Speaking In Person: Please fill out a green comment card on the table at the front of the room and give it to the 
City Recorder. If you have a written statement for the Council, please have 10 copies available, and give them to 
the City Recorder who will distribute them to the Council. 
 
Speaking Virtually: Please contact the City Recorder before 1 pm, the day before the meeting. Email the City 
Recorder at alanter@cityofbanks.org or call 503-324-5112 to provide your name, phone number, address, email 
address, and if you will be testifying in favor, neutral, or against. Members of the public will not be able to share 



 

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, March 11, 2025 @ 6:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

their screen or turn on their camera during the meeting; presentation materials should be submitted as written 
testimony and be received by the City Recorder before 1 pm the day before the meeting. The City Recorder will 
send you a confirmation email.    
 
Written comments are always welcome and can be emailed to the City Recorder at alanter@cityofbanks.org. 
 
BUSINESS AGENDA 

14. Shall the City Council elect a new Council President? 
15. Shall the City Council review and reassign City Council Committee Assignments? Agenda Packet pg. 126 

 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ROUND TABLE DISCUSSION 
 
ADJOURN 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – None 
Representatives of the news media and designated staff may attend Executive Sessions.  Representatives of 
the news media are specifically directed not to report on any of the deliberations during the Executive Session, 
except to state the general subject of the session as previously announced.  No decision will be made in the 
executive session. 
 
 
 

mailto:alanter@cityofbanks.org


2

Annual Report
FAMILY JUSTICE CENTER OF
WASHINGTON COUNTY

^ ^1^ 
•̂^^^ ^

^y ^<<
^^5

^
^

^ ^^

^ ^0
^

^^^^—. c^
i///A/GTO^'

YEAR IN REVIEW IMPACT REPORT HIGHLIGHTS

1



2024 in Review

INNOVATION, COLLECTIVE ACTION, AND IMPACT

In 2024, we are thrilled to report another year of remarkable growth, impactful services, and continued
dedication to our mission of ending the cycles of violence and abuse in our community. Like the previous
year, 2024 witnessed an increase in the number of survivors served, and our scope of services expanded
once again with the inclusion of two new partners, St. Andrew Legal Clinic for free family law case
navigation, and Oregon Food Bank for fresh food distribution. We are proud to share that services delivered
were the highest in our history, breaking the 11,600 mark.

In fact, one survivor shared with us,(< I used to have to go door to door to door and nothing got done. I was
always missing my appointments, struggling to get to the places, and it seemed like at each place I had to
tell them everything again and again. But then I got here, and it all just worked. The things I needed to
keep my kids and I safe are finally happening. It's like you're all working together just for us."

Along with the growth in the number of survivors served, our organization expanded the array of services
provided. In 2024, we launched innovative programs such:

• County-wide risk assessment: FJC spearheaded a county-wide risk assessment, launched with law
enforcement and judicial partners, to measure homicide risk during domestic and sexual violence calls,
enhancing survivor safety and preventing homicides. This year, Washington County saw an 80%
reduction in domestic violence homicides, reversing a post-pandemic upward trend.

• Contested Restraining Order Hearingsi FJC, in partnership with Washington County Court and DVRC,
launched a program enabling survivors to attend contested restraining order hearings remotely from
the FJC, ensuring a safe, supportive environment with advocates and legal counsel while the accused
appears in court. This landmark program is the first in the nation.

• Food Pantry partnership with Oregon Food Bank: FJC partnered with the Oregon Food Bank to create
Oregon's first survivor-only food pantry, providing over 22,800 pounds of food this year to help
survivors and their children access essential resources, overcome barriers, and rebuild their lives safely
and healthily. Inability to access basic needs is a leading reason for survivors being unable to exit
abusive situations.

• Survivor Outreach and Advocacyj. FJC's Survivor VOICES Committee launched initiatives to engage in
state and local policy advocacy and a Peer Outreach Program. These were aimed at using their lived
experience to enhance survivor safety, improve access to justice, ensure offender accountability, and
connect directly with survivors in the community.

This year, we continued our community-wide collaboration on events aimed at raising awareness,
amplifying survivors' voices, and supporting families. Our events saw remarkable increases in
engagement, particularly the Run for Hope and Holiday Food Box program. These events not only united
our community but also demonstrated our whole county's commitment to creating a safe and supportive
environment for survivors and their families.

2024 was one of innovation and impact for our organization that rippled out
far beyond our walls. The journey toward ending violence and abuse requires
the holistic, collaborative, multi-disciplinary approach championed inside of
our center. Each year our efforts expand, proving that together, we can make Rachel Schutz
real change in Washington County. Executive Dl rector

2



Data

SURVIVORS SERVED AND SERVICES PROVIDED

SURVIVORS SERVED

In 2024, the FJC served 26%
more survivors than 2023.
Since 2018, the FJC has seen a
growth of 323% in survivors
seeking services. We believe
that the largest driver of this
increase has been awareness,
both of abuse generally and
the Family Justice Center
itself, but also the increasing
number of partners located
and services provided every
year.

Survivors Served in 2024

Yearly Total 4823

2379

7202

0 7000 80001000 2000 3000 4000 5000 6000

• Total Survivors • Total In Person » Totyl By Phon!-'

SERVICES PROVIDED

Services increased once again this year, by 16%. This included the addition of new services, new partners, and
expanded partner capacity, in an effort to increase support and responsivity to survivor needs.

Services Provided in 2024

Advocacy

Food, Clothing, and Basic Need?

Legal Seivices

Restraining Orders

Crisis Calls Routed

Safety Net Services.

Counseling & Mental Heaifn

Other

Support Groups

eCoyrt

Resource Referrals

Shelter

Childcdre

Na'.'igan'on

Law Enforcement

language Access

Community Events & Education

High Risk Referrals

Parenting Support

Hotel

3187

1939

1080

7U

701

636

389

387

M6

316

307

250

244

173

112

84

57

53

41

567

TOTAL SERVICES:

11,687

0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000 3500

3



Impact
(QUALITATIVE AND Q^UANTITATIVE

99.4%

106

250

1,939
701

100%

Of survivors reported
they experienced
trauma informed care

while receiving
services.

Families were provided
emergency hotels or
transportation to
escape abuse.

Children were cared for

while their parents'
sought services.

Survivors received food

and clothing.

After-hours crisis calls
were routed to our

partners, making the
FJC's phone number its
own one-stop-shop.

Of survivors felt they
and their children were

cared for by staff and
partners

7,899

100%

57

346
389

22,843

89.2%

Of survivors reported
that they received the
help they needed to
keep their family safe.

Survivors at high risk of
homicide had their
cases coordinated to

ensure their safety.

Survivors safely
appeared for their court
cases at the FJC.

Survivors were

provided emergency
items such as phones,
gift cards, new locks, or
address confidentiality.

Pounds of food was

distributed to survivors

and their children.

Of survivors reported
that after their visit

they can see their path
to Safety, Healing, and
Hope.

Additional services were coordinated amongst our 18 on-
site partner agencies, ensuring that survivors only had to
come to one place to access safety, healing, and hope.

4



Demographics
SURVIVORS, STAFF, AND GEOGRAPHY

American Indian or Alaskan Native

Asian or Pacific Islander

Black or African

Hispanic or Latino

White or Caucasian

Two or More

SURVIVOR
DEMOGRAPHICS

Washington County
population is 78% white and
22% people of color. The FJC
serves 65% people of color,
illustrating the
disproportionate impact of
violence and abuse on

marginalized communities.

0 10 20 30 40

STAFF DEMOGRAPHICS

The FJC seeks to represent the populations it serves,
including having survivors on staff and as board members.
In addition to 71% identifying as BIPOC, 88% of staff
identify as having lived experience as well as 100% on our
VOICES Committee and 40% on our Board of Directors.

BIPOC
71%

White
29%

Survivors Services

2024

Since 2021

6o10 20 40 500 30

CITY OF BANKS

The FJC provided 8 Banks survivors
with ll services, a 4% decrease over

2023. Since 2021, 38 survivors have
accessed 59 services at the FJC, with
Banks investing $6,000 in the
center's operation over the past
four years.

5





































































































































































































































11
s
^.s
^
^^^

C!TY

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

Council Letter 2025-04
Agenda of February 11 , 2025

Agenda Item:

Shall the City Council adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook, the City of Banks
Public Works Department On-Call Policy, and the City of Banks Vacation Sell Back Policy, and the
newly created City of Banks PERS Retiree Workback Policy, Banks Municipal Court Media
Protection Policy, City of Banks Paid Leave Oregon Policy, and the City of Banks Employee
Accrued Leave Request Form?

Background:
Review of the City of Banks Employee Handbook, the City of Banks Public Works Department On-
Call Policy, and the City of Banks Vacation Sell Back Policy have been completed.

Amendments include:

Grammar and formatting throughout the documents.
Pg. 36 - Item #6 updated language about employee personal appearance.
Pg. 48-Added section "Employee's that have reached the top of the pay range for
their position".
Pg. 60 - Updated language regarding holiday hours for part-time employees.
Pg. 63 -Addition of Paid Leave Oregon Policy reference.
Pg. 64 - Additional clarifying information added to the "Leave without Pay" section.

Newly created are the City of Banks PERS Retiree Workback Policy, Banks Municipal Court Media
Protection Policy, City of Banks Paid Leave Oregon Policy, and the City of Banks Employee
Accrued Leave Request Form.

• These are all newly created policies and forms.

Amendments to the documents include Grammar and punctuation corrections, removal of some
policies that were changed to stand alone policies, and verification of references listed in the
documents.

It is recommended that the City adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook, City of Banks
Human Resource Management Guidelines for Supervisors, and the City of Banks Volunteer Policy
Manual.

Council Alternatives:

1. Adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook, the City of Banks Public Works
Department On-Call Policy, the City of Banks Vacation Sell Back Policy, and the newly
created City of Banks PERS Retiree Workback Policy, Banks Municipal Court Media
Protection Policy, City of Banks Paid Leave Oregon Policy, and the City of Banks Employee
Accrued Leave Request Form.

119



2.

Sample Motion: "I make a motion to adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook,
the City of Banks Public Works Department On-Call Policy, and the City of Banks Vacation
Sell Back Policy, and the newly created City of Banks PERS Retiree Workback Policy,
Banks Municipal Court Media Protection Policy, City of Banks Paid Leave Oregon Policy,
and the City of Banks Employee Accrued Leave Request Form."

Decline to adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook, the City of Banks Public
Works Department On-Call Policy, and the City of Banks Vacation Sell Back Policy, and the
newly created City of Banks PERS Retiree Workback Policy, Banks Municipal Court Media
Protection Policy, City of Banks Paid Leave Oregon Policy, and the City of Banks Employee
Accrued Leave Request Form.

Angie Lanter, MMC
City Recorder/Assistant City Manager

120



12
«
^§
^

-iA

CITY

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

Council Letter 2025-05
Agenda of February 11, 2025

Agenda Item:

Shall the City Council approve the operating hours extension request from Sunset
Speedway and Sunset Park Association?

Background:

Sunset Speedway makes a great effort to end all races by 10:00 pm. However, there
are occasions when the races do end close to 1 1:00 pm. These instances are due to
situations that are out of their control, such as wrecks, which can cause a delay in the
race.

Sunset Park Association rents outSchlegel Hall for different functions and makes every
effort to have functions end by 10:00 pm. However, there are occasions when events
will end closer to 1 1:00 pm.

It is recommended that the City Council authorizes the existing extension of operating
hours to 11:00 pm for Sunset Speedway, and Sunset Park Association.

Council Alternatives:

1. Authorize to maintain the existing extension of operating hours to 11:00 pm for
Sunset Speedway.

Sample Motion: "I make a motion to maintain the existing extension of operating
hours to 11:00 pm for Sunset Speedway, and Sunset Park Association".

2. Decline to maintain the existing extension.

Angie Lanter, MMC
City Recorder/Assistant City Manager

121



1-13-2025

To the City of Banks,

The Banks Sunset Park Assoc. would like to have its annual noise

permit for events inside Schlegel hall renewed, raising the time from

10pm to llpm.

Thank you,

David Duyck

President Banks Sunset Park Assoc.

122



January 13th, 2025

To: City of Banks, Oregon

Re: Sunset Speedway Noise Extension Request

Dear Mayor Stephanie Jones and Banks City Council:

Sunset Speedway has been an important and cooperative corporate citizen operating in the City of
Banks for 39 years. Our season, as you know, is limited, and races are almost every Saturday of each
week in the months of April-September (few exceptions such as Memorial Day Weekend, and Fourth of
July.) While we try to conclude all races by 10:00pm, that is not always possible due to car crashes and
other events beyond our control. Regardless, we work hard to avoid and limit our noise impact on the
surrounding community.

We have in the past years obtained an exception to the City's Noise Regulations as allowed by Section
130.04(C) of the Banks Code of Ordinances, to allow us to operate our normal Saturday Night Race
Schedule (with one race on Friday and one on Sunday). We hereby request another limited duration
exception to the noise regulations for our Saturday Night Races for the months of operation to allow
races to continue to ll:00pm if necessary. We will work hard to conclude all racing by 10:00pm, but
from time to time, that will not be possible, thus, our request is for ll:00pm. Thank you for your
consideration and continued support of Sunset Speedway. Please contact me if you have any questions.

Thank you.

"(C) Anyone proposing an activity, project or event that could violate this section may seek a one-time
or limited duration exception from the City Council for good case shown. The City Council may grant
such an exception and may impose conditions and restrictions that limit the time, duration, or area of
disturbance likely to be caused by the activity, project or event.

Sincerely,

Jerry Schram
Owner & Operator of Sunset Speedway
360-518-2590
Schram901@aol.com

123



May 3 Season Opener

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
May 10

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
May 17

IMCA Modifieds, IMCA Stock Cars, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
May 24

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
May 25

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
May 31
IMCA Modifieds, Pure Stocks, PMSA (Pacific Mini Sprints Assoc.), Open 4cyl, PHRA (PHRA Dwarf
cars)
June 7

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
June 21 Wild West IMCA Speedweek Finale
IMCA Modifieds, IMCA Sport Mods, IMCA Stock Cars
June 28

IMCA Modifieds, IMCA Stock Cars, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
July 4
IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, PHRA, Open 4cyl
July 5 Iron Giant Street Stock Series
Iron Giant Street Stock Series, PMSA, PHRA, Open 4cyl
July 12 1-5 Silver Bullet Series
1-5 Series Super Late Models, IMCA Modifieds, IMCA Stock Cars, Open 4cyl
July 19 JIM'S 100
American Classics, IMCA Modifieds, Pure Stock, Open 4cyl
July 26

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, PHRA
August 2 Open Wheel Frenzy Night
NWFM (Northwest Focus Midgets), WSS (Wingless Sprint Series), Micro 600R, Micro Open
August 9

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Open 4cyl
August 23

IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, IMCA Stock Cars, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
Septembers
American Classics, Pure Stocks, PMSA, Open 4cyl, PHRA
September 13

IMCA Modifieds, IMCA Stock Cars, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl
September 20
IMCA Modifieds, American Classics, Pure Stocks, Micro 600r, Open 4cyl

124



13
s
^.§
^

Ci-Y

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

Council Letter 2025-06
Agenda of February 11, 2025

Agenda Item:

Shall the City Council confirm appointments to the Board, Commission and Committee
positions listed below, based on recommendation from the mayor?

a. Barbara Brennan - Budget Committee Position BC1, term will expire on
December 31, 2026.

b. Barbara Brennan - Urban Renewal Agency Budget Committee Position
URABC8, term will expire on December 31, 2026.

Background:
The appointments listed above are new appointments to the Budget Committee and the
Urban Renewal Agency Budget Committee, which the above-listed wish to serve on.

Barbara Brennan is a current member of the City of Banks Planning Commission.

It is recommended that the City Council confirm the mayor's appointment to this position.

Council Alternatives:

1. Confirm the Mayor's appointment to the Board, Commission, and Committee
position listed above.

Sample Motion:
"I make a motion to confirm the mayor's appointment to the Board, Commission, and
Committee position."

2. Decline to confirm the mayor's appointment.

Angie Lanter, MMC
City Recorder/Assistant City Manager

125



Committee Meeting Date Meeting Time Location Primary Alternate
Date approved by
motion

Letter of

appointment
required

15

Banks Fire District #13 Board Meeting 2nd Wednesday 6:00 PM Banks Fire Department Marilyn McCalister [Don Giannetti April 9, 2024 No

Banks Historical Society Last Monday 7:00 PM Log Cabin Park Marsha Kirk February 14,2023 No

Banks School District #13 Board Meeting 2nd Monday 6:00 PM School District Board Room Niki Walters Stephanie Jones April 9, 2024 No

Banks School District #13 Facilities Committee Varies School District Board Room Peter Edison Don Giannetti April 9, 2024 No
CDBG - Community Development Block Grant /Policy Advisory
Board 2nd Thursday 7:00 PM Zoom Stephanie Jones |Marsha Kirk

City Manager Performance Review Sub-Committee Annually Varies Varies
Stephanie Jones and
Peter Edison

City of Banks Economic Development Commission 1st Wednesday 6:30 PM Zoom/City Council Chambers Peter Edison Marsha Kirk

February 14, 2023 Yes

January 12,2021 No

January 11,2022 No

City of Banks Library Board 3rd Tuesday 7:00 PM Zoom Peter Edison Niki Walters January 12,2021 No

City of Banks Park, Recreation and Tree Board Meeting
Quarterly
Feb/May/Aug/Nov 6:00 PM City Council Chambers Don Giannetti Marsha Kirk April 9, 2024 No

COL-PAC EDD - Columbia-Pacific Economic Development
Directors 2nd Thursday 10:30 AM-Noon Varies Marsha Kirk Stephanie Jones January 12,2021 No

NWACT - Northwest Oregon Area Commission on Transportation
Bimonthly

Jan/Mar/May/Jul/Sep/Nov 1:00 PM-3:00 PM Varies Marsha Kirk Stephanie Jones January 12,2021 No

MACC - Metropolitan Area Communications Commission Quarterly 1:30 PM MACC Office & Zoom Jolynn Becker February 14, 2023 Yes

Sunset Park Association 3rd Wednesday 7:00 PM Schlegel Hall Niki Walters Marsha Kirk February 14, 2023 No

WCCC - Washington County Coordinating Committee 2nd Monday 12:00 PM Zoom Stephanie Jones | Peter Edison April 9, 2024 Yes
WCCCA - Washington County Consolidated Communications
Agency(911)

Quarterly

Sept/Dec/Mar/Jun 3:00 PM WCCCA Office/Zoom Niki Walters Jolynn Becker February 14, 2023 Yes

West Tuatity Habitat for Humanity Varies 6:30 PM Forest Grove Restore Marilyn McCalister Stephanie Jones July 11, 2023 No

126




